

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES CLASSIFIED SENATE



8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

BYLAWS

Adopted: June 19, 2001
(Revised: September 9, 2014)
4CS Board of Directors Meeting
Granlibakken, Tahoe City, California

24
25
26
27
28

We, the Classified Staff of the California Community Colleges, do hereby establish the California Community Colleges Classified Senate in order to promote the best interests of higher education in the State, and facilitate effective participation of classified colleagues at the State level.

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73

California Community Colleges
Classified Senate (4CS)
Bylaws

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I - NAME AND ADDRESS OF CORPORATION

- Section 1. Name
- Section 2. Address

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE AND MISSION STATEMENTS

- Section 1. Purpose
- Section 2. Mission Statement

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP AND ELECTORATE

- Section 1. General Membership
- Section 2. Electorate

ARTICLE IV - EXECUTIVE BOARD

- Section 1. Membership
- Section 2. Candidate Qualifications
- Section 3. Election Rules and Procedures
- Section 4. Terms
- Section 5. Dismissals and Resignations
- Section 6. Leave of Absence
- Section 7. Recall Procedures
- Section 8. Vacancies on the Executive Board
- Section 9. Powers and Responsibilities
- Section 10. Responsibilities of Executive Board Members
- Section 11. Indemnification of Directors, Officers, and Other Agents

ARTICLE V - MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

- Section 1. Notice and Place of Meetings
- Section 2. Annual Business Meeting
- Section 3. Annual Business Meeting Quorum
- Section 4. Executive Board Meetings
- Section 5. Executive Board Quorum
- Section 6. Area Meetings
- Section 7. Special Meetings
- Section 8. Meeting Procedures
- Section 9. Action Without Meeting
- Section 10. Fiscal Year

74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93

ARTICLE VI - STANDING COMMITTEES AND ASSIGNMENTS

- Section 1. Committees
- Section 2. Committee Membership
- Section 3. Standing Committee Quorum
- Section 4. Committee Reports
- Section 5. Special Assignments

ARTICLE VII - BYLAWS ESTABLISHMENT, AMENDMENT AND RATIFICATION

- Section 1. 4CS Bylaws
- Section 2. Amendment of Bylaws
- Section 3. Ratification of Bylaws

ARTICLE VIII - DEFINITIONS

- Classified Staff
- Delegate
- Senates

94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110

ARTICLE I
NAME AND ADDRESS OF CORPORATION

Section 1. Name

The official name of the organization shall be California Community Colleges Classified Senate, hereinafter referred to as the 4CS or CCCCS.

Section 2. Address

The Corporate address has been established to be: California Community Colleges Classified Senate, 7 Governors Lane, Chico, California 95926.

Article II
PURPOSE AND MISSION STATEMENTS

Section 1. Purpose

The specific purpose of this Corporation shall be to represent the Classified Staff of the California Community College System for participation in governance and to support the mission of the California Community College System.

The expanded purposes of the 4CS shall be to:

- Promote the classified staff of the California Community Colleges on all non-collective bargaining issues.
- Provide classified staff with a formal voice in determining institutional policies of statewide concern.
- Make recommendations on statewide matters affecting the California Community Colleges, as appropriate.
- Communicate to the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges the needs, concerns, viewpoints, and recommendations developed by the 4CS.
- Promote and facilitate the sharing of ideas, techniques, and experiences of its members by publishing and distributing bulletins, minutes and other appropriate materials.
- Assist in the development and strengthening of local shared governance bodies, as well as support the formation of local senates.
- Promote and support networking activities.
- Provide an opportunity to develop individual leadership in the classified staff, and increase the professional standards of its members.
- Address concerns as requested by its membership.

Section 2. Mission Statement

The California Community Colleges Classified Senate (4CS, is dedicated to supporting shared governance for classified staff at community colleges and districts, recognizes the value of higher education in the state of California, and devotes its efforts in:

- Advocating the value and contributions classified staff provide to the campus community;
- Providing quality service to promote student success and completion;
- Cooperating with other organizations to enrich the educational experience of the California Community Colleges;
- Serving as a liaison between the California Community Colleges' senates;
- Promoting the participation of classified staff in shared governance at the State, local, and college levels;
- Developing and supporting classified senates throughout the state of California; and
- Continue to grow as the statewide participatory governance body for classified staff in California Community Colleges

156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177

ARTICLE III
MEMBERSHIP AND ELECTORATE

Section 1. General Membership

Members of the 4CS are defined in Section VIII of these Bylaws as local senates that have a Constitution/Bylaws on file with the 4CS. Each college shall be entitled to one (1) General Membership in the 4CS. In the event of more than one (1) General Membership submitted from a college, the decision as to which shall be the college’s voting membership shall be determined by the local college’s classified staff. A multi-campus District shall be allowed one general membership for each college in the District. A District office separate from college sites within the District may have a senate consisting of only district-office employees and shall be entitled to one general membership. A District-wide senate consisting of senate members from various colleges within the District shall be granted a non-voting Advisory Membership.

Section 2. Electorate

The Electorate has voting rights and shall consist of the Executive Officers, Area Representatives and Delegates from each member senate (for election of local representation) of the 4CS.

ARTICLE IV
EXECUTIVE BOARD

Section 1. Membership

There shall be a maximum of twenty-two (22) or minimum of nine (9) Directors, collectively known as the 4CS Executive Board. The Executive Board of the 4CS shall consist of seven (7) Executive Officers and the fifteen (15) Area Representatives. Advisory positions of 4CS Associates and President Emeritus may be approved yearly by the Executive Board.

- A. Executive Officers - The Executive Officers of the 4CS shall include the President, President-Elect, North Vice President, South Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, and Past President.
- B. Area Representatives - Each of the five areas: North, Bay, Central, Southwest and Southeast shall have no more than three Area Representatives.
- C. 4CS Associate: 4CS Executive Board Alumni may be elected by the serving 4CS Executive Board to serve as 4CS Associate.
- D. President Emeritus: President Emeritus may be granted by the serving 4CS Executive Board to serve in an advisory capacity to the Board.

Section 2. Candidate Qualifications

Each candidate for election to the 4CS Executive Board shall be an active or past member of a 4CS member classified senate.

- A. All candidates for election to the President, President-Elect, Vice President Executive Officer positions must be active members of the current 4CS Executive Board.
- B. The Area Representatives shall be elected at the local senate level on the basis of their geographic representation within areas and regions as defined by the Executive Board.

Section 3. Election Rules and Procedures

The election process shall be the responsibility of the Nominations and Elections Committee. The Nominations and Elections Committee shall develop procedures and timelines for the election process.

- A. To be elected to any Executive Board Officer position a candidate must receive a majority vote of the Electorate present at the Annual Business meeting. When the Office of President-Elect is occupied and the term of the current President has expired or been vacated, the President-Elect will rotate into the position of the President for a two-year term or to fill the vacated position. After a full two-year term, the President shall then rotate in to the position of Past President. An exception is made for filling vacancies (see Section 7, Vacancies on the Executive Board).
- B. Candidates for Area Representative will be declared elected to the position if they run unopposed: i.e. no other qualified candidates submit a letter of intent within the required

221 timetable published by the Nominations and Elections Committee. In addition, they must
 222 meet Candidate Qualifications as described in these Bylaws. It shall be the responsibility of
 223 the Executive Board to verify that these conditions have been met.

224 C. In the event no candidate receives a simple majority (50% +1), a runoff election will be held
 225 between the candidates with the two (2) highest number of votes. In the event of a tie or lack
 226 of a simple majority (50%+1) after the second vote, then the candidates for the Executive
 227 Board position will be chosen by lot.

228 D. There shall be no proxy votes.

229 E. The Executive Board shall consider the subject of term limits every four (4) years.

230
 231 **Section 4. Terms**
 232 Terms of office for the Executive Board members shall be based on the following table. Board
 233 members with the designation of “A” shall begin terms at the end of the Annual Business Meeting in
 234 June of every even year and officers with the designation of “B” shall begin terms of every odd year.
 235 The term of office is two years, except for the president-elect, which is a one-year position elected at
 236 the beginning of the second year of the president’s term. Executive Board members except the
 237 president may serve consecutive terms.
 238
 239

A	B
North 1	North 2
North 3	Central 1
Central 2	Central 3
Bay 1	Bay 2
Bay 3	Southeast 1
Southeast 2	Southeast 3
Southwest 1	Southwest 2
Southwest 3	President (see section 3A)
President-Elect	North Vice President
South Vice President	Treasurer
Secretary	

240
 241
 242 **Section 5. Dismissals and Resignations**
 243 Failure to attend two (2) successive Executive Board meetings without notice and reasonable cause
 244 may result in that Executive Board member being dismissed from the Executive Board. Procedures
 245 for filling that position are outlined in section 7: Vacancies on the Executive Board.
 246

247 A. After failure to attend Executive Board meetings as described in this section, the dismissal
 248 process will include (at the least) a written and verbal notification from the Executive Board

249 of any potential actions, which may include dismissal from the Executive Board. Dismissal
250 actions may occur as early as the next scheduled Executive Board meeting after notification
251 to the Executive Board member. Dismissal of an Executive Board member requires a simple
252 majority (50%+1) of those present for approval.

253 B. Any member of the Executive Board may resign by written notice to the President.
254 Procedures for filling that position are outlined in section 7: Vacancies on the Executive
255 Board.

256
257 **Section 6. Leave of Absence**

258 Any Executive Board Officer may request a leave of absence of up to three months by written
259 request to the President. The leave must be approved, by majority vote, of the Executive Board. If
260 the leave is approved, an interim appointment may be made for any Executive Officer or Area
261 Representative following the procedures in section 7: Vacancies on the Executive Board.

262
263 **Section 7. Recall Procedures**

264 Executive Board members may be recalled as follows:

265 A. Executive Officers: President, President Elect, Secretary, and Treasurer
266 1. A representative petition of a minimum of 25% of the state membership shall be
267 submitted to the 4CS Executive Board, each senate comprising one vote.
268 2. Within 30 days the 4CS Executive Board will hold a recall election of member senates.
269 3. An Executive Officer may be recalled with a majority vote of member senates.
270 4. Each member senate will be given one member vote.

271 B. Executive Officers: North and South Vice Presidents
272 1. A petition signed by a minimum of 25% of the respective region shall be submitted to the
273 4CS Executive Board, each senate comprising one vote.
274 2. Within 30 days the 4CS Executive Board will hold a recall election of member senates
275 within the region in question.
276 3. A Regional Vice President may be recalled with a majority vote of member senates
277 within the region.
278 4. Each member senate will be given one member vote.

279 C. Area Representatives:
280 1. A petition signed by a minimum of 25% of member senates from within the area shall be
281 submitted to the 4CS Executive Board, each senate comprising one vote.
282 2. Within 30 days the 4CS Executive Board will hold a recall election of member senates
283 within the area in question.
284 3. An Area Representative may be recalled with a majority vote of member senates.
285 4. Each member senate will be given one member vote.

286
287 **Section 8. Vacancies on the Executive Board**

288 A vacancy in the abovementioned offices shall be filled in accordance with the following: if for any
289 reason Executive Board vacancies exist, which cannot be first filled by the processes delineated in
290 this section, it shall then be the task of the Executive Board to fill any vacant positions until an
291 election can be arranged.

- 292
293 A. Vacancies on the Executive Board may be filled on a temporary basis by the President with
294 the consensus of the Executive Board until the next Annual Business Meeting.
- 295 B. A vacancy in the office of the President shall be filled by the President-Elect.
- 296 C. A vacancy in the office of the President-Elect shall be filled by a Vice President with the
297 general consensus of the Executive Board. If there is also a vacancy in both the offices of
298 Vice President, a member of the present Executive Board shall fill the vacancy by general
299 consensus of the Executive Board.
- 300 D. A vacancy in the office of North and/or South Vice President shall be filled by a member of
301 the present Executive Board appointed by general consensus of the Executive Board. In the
302 event there is no Executive Board member who is willing or able to serve, then nominations
303 and elections from the general membership will be conducted.
- 304 E. A vacancy in the office of Secretary or Treasurer shall be filled by members of the Executive
305 Board and ratified by the Executive Board subject to ratification at the next Annual Business
306 Meeting. In the event there is no Executive Board Officer who is willing or able to serve,
307 then nominations and elections from the general membership will be conducted.
- 308 F. A vacancy in the office of an Area Representative shall be filled by an active member of a
309 local member senate of the 4CS from within that area or region respectively, appointed by
310 the 4CS President and with the consensus of the Executive Board.
- 311 G. Appointees shall meet the selection criteria as described in the section "Candidate
312 Qualifications" at the time of their appointment except in the case of the position of Past
313 President. In such case, the Executive Board shall appoint the next preceding Past President
314 in descending order, who is willing and able to serve in their capacity so long as they are still
315 classified staff.
- 316 H. If the appointment is not ratified at the Annual Business Meeting, then another candidate
317 must be nominated and voted in by the membership at that annual business meeting.
- 318 I. 4CS Associates will be approved of and assigned specific duties on a fiscal yearly basis.
319 The 4CS Executive Board may revoke Associate status with a majority vote of the
320 Executive Board.

321
322 **Section 9. Powers and Responsibilities**

323 The Executive Board will adopt rules of procedure and implement policies consistent with the intent,
324 purposes and provisions of the 4CS Bylaws. The Executive Board shall have the power and
325 responsibilities to conduct all business and financial affairs of the Corporation.

326
327 **Section 10. Responsibilities of Executive Board Members**

- 328 A. The President shall:
- 329 1. Be responsible for the preparation of the agenda for all meetings after receiving input
330 from the Executive Board and/or from any member classified senate.
- 331 2. Preside over the Annual Business Meeting, and Executive Board meetings.
- 332 3. Perform any other function normally thought to be within the realm of a presiding officer
333 that is otherwise not denied by the Bylaws, including authorizing any expenditure from

- 334 the budget.
- 335 4. Sign approved minutes, along with the Secretary.
- 336 5. Be aware of non-profit and incorporated status.
- 337 6. With the secretary, provide a non-profit statement annually.
- 338 B. The President-Elect shall:
- 339 1. Plan to serve as future President of the 4CS.
- 340 2. Gain as much experience and training as possible to serve as future President of 4CS.
- 341 3. Work closely with the President to facilitate a smooth transition to the office of President
- 342 of the 4CS.
- 343 4. Be an ex-officio member of the 4CS standing committees.
- 344 5. Attend all 4CS meetings.
- 345 6. Serve as liaison between the Vice President, Area Representatives and the President.
- 346 7. Perform other related duties as assigned by the President.
- 347 8. Be aware of non-profit and incorporated status.
- 348 9. In the absence or disability of the President, serve as Interim President.
- 349 C. The North and South Regional Vice Presidents shall:
- 350 1. Attend all 4CS meetings.
- 351 2. Be the liaison between their respective Area Representatives, the President-Elect, and the
- 352 President.
- 353 3. Oversee the Area Representative responsibilities, assisting as necessary. This may
- 354 include disseminating information, updating the directory, and arranging meetings
- 355 between Area Representatives and colleges.
- 356 4. Assist the President and Conference Committee in coordinating workshops at
- 357 conventions or retreats.
- 358 5. Perform research activities as directed by the President.
- 359 6. Be an ex-officio member of 4CS standing committees.
- 360 7. In the absence or disability of the President-Elect, may be appointed to serve as Interim
- 361 President-Elect.
- 362 8. Be aware of non-profit and incorporated status.
- 363 9. In the absence or disability of both the President and the President-Elect, may be
- 364 appointed to serve as Interim President.
- 365 D. The Secretary shall:
- 366 1. Attend all 4CS meetings.
- 367 2. Be responsible for taking and making available minutes of all meetings to the members of
- 368 the Executive Board. A draft is expected within thirty (30) calendar days after the
- 369 meeting, with the unapproved minutes being distributed within sixty (60) calendar days
- 370 after the meeting.
- 371 3. Maintain an archive of all 4CS business and correspondence.
- 372 4. Sign approved minutes, along with the President.
- 373 5. Be responsible for maintaining and publishing the 4CS Annual Directory.
- 374 6. Perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board or ordered by these
- 375 Bylaws.
- 376 7. Be aware of non-profit and incorporated status.
- 377 8. With the president, will develop a year end non-profit statement.

- 378 E. The Treasurer shall:
379 1. Attend all 4CS meetings.
380 2. Be responsible for all monetary collections and disbursements relating to the 4CS.
381 3. Maintain all records pertaining to the financial status of the 4CS.
382 4. Be aware of non-profit and incorporated status.
383 5. Prepare a financial year-end report to be made available.
384 6. Perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board or ordered by these
385 Bylaws.
- 386 F. The Area Representatives shall:
387 1. Attend all 4CS meetings.
388 2. Handle dissemination of all pertinent 4CS correspondence.
389 3. Act as the area contact.
390 4. Keep in contact with and forward concerns to the President, President-Elect, and Vice
391 Presidents.
392 5. Assist local colleges without senates by providing information regarding how to form a
393 senate. This may include sending a packet of information and/or making arrangements
394 for a personal visit by the President, President-Elect, Vice Presidents or designee to host a
395 workshop. This also includes addressing the concerns of all the colleges in that area.
396 6. Be aware of non-profit and incorporated status.
397 7. Perform other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board or ordered by these
398 Bylaws.
- 399 G. The 4CS Associate shall:
400 1. Attend all 4CS meetings possible.
401 2. Represent 4CS in general duties as assigned by the 4CS Executive Board upon
402 appointment per fiscal year.
403 3. Keep in contact with and forward concerns to the President, President-Elect, and Vice
404 Presidents.
405 4. Exercise advisory voting rights as 4CS Associate.
406 5. Be eligible for funding for required duties.
407 6. Perform other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board or ordered by these
408 Bylaws.
- 409 H. The Past President may:
410 1. Attend all 4CS meetings and be available for guidance and advice to the existing board.
411 2. Perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board or ordered by these
412 Bylaws.
- 413 I. The President Emeritus:
414 1. Attend all 4CS meetings possible and be available for guidance and advice to the existing
415 board.
416 2. Perform other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board or ordered by these
417 Bylaws.
418

419 **Section 10. Indemnification of Directors, Officers, and Other Agents**

- 420 A. Right of Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law this Corporation shall indemnify

421 its Directors, Officers, employees, and other persons as described in section 5238(a) of the
422 California Corporations Code, including persons formerly occupying any such position,
423 against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably
424 incurred by them in connection with any “proceeding,” as that term is used in that Section,
425 and including an action by or in the right of the corporation, by reason of the fact that the
426 person is or was a person described in that section. “Expenses,” as used in this Bylaw, shall
427 have the same meaning as in Section 5238(a) of the California Corporations Code.

428 B. Approval of Indemnity. On written request to the Board by any person seeking
429 indemnification under Section 5238(b) or Section 5238(c) of the California Corporations
430 Code, the Board shall promptly determine under Section 5238(e) of the California
431 Corporations Code whether the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section 5238(b) or
432 Section 5238(c) has been met and, if so, the Board shall authorize indemnification. If the
433 Board cannot authorize indemnification because the number of Directors who are parties to
434 the proceeding with respect to which indemnification is sought prevents the formation of a
435 quorum of directors who are no parties to that proceeding, the Board shall promptly call a
436 meeting of members. At that meeting, the members shall determine under Section 5238(c)
437 of the California Corporations Code whether the applicable standard of conduct set forth in
438 Section 5238(b) or Section 5238(c) has been met and, if so the members present at the
439 meeting in person shall authorize indemnification.

440 C. Advancement of Expenses. To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise
441 determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking
442 indemnification under these Bylaws in defending any proceeding covered by those Sections
443 shall be advanced by the Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding, on receipt by
444 the Corporation of an undertaking by or on behalf of that person that the advance will be
445 repaid unless it is ultimately determined that the person is entitled to be indemnified by the
446 Corporation for those expenses.

447 D. Insurance. The Corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain insurance to the
448 full extent permitted by law on behalf of its Officers, Directors, employees, and other agents,
449 against any liability asserted against or incurred by any Officer, Director, employee, or agent
450 in such capacity or arising out of the Officer’s, Director’s, employee’s or agent’s status as
451 such.

452
453
454
455

456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500

ARTICLE V
MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Section 1. Notice and Place of Meetings

All meetings shall be scheduled in advance by the Executive Board except for special circumstances provided for within these Bylaws of the Corporation. Notice of all meetings must be sent at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the proposed meeting to all Executive Board Officers and Area Representatives. The Executive Board will determine the place and times for each meeting. Meeting times and place shall be made available to the 4CS membership.

Section 2. Annual Business Meeting

An Annual Business Meeting, which shall be open to all community college classified staff throughout the State, shall convene at least one (1) time during the year at a time and place designated by the Executive Board. This meeting will include annual elections of Executive Board members and 4CS initiatives.

Section 3. Annual Business Meeting Quorum

In order to conduct business a quorum shall be defined as a simple majority (50%+1) of the Executive Board plus any authorized Delegates present for a meeting. For the purpose of making motions and voting on business items, it shall require a simple majority (50%+1) of those present voting in favor for approval.

Section 4. Executive Board Meetings

The Executive Board shall meet four times per year. All Executive Board meetings shall be public forums, but no one shall address the Executive Board except at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 5. Executive Board Quorum

In order to conduct business the Executive Board shall consist of a simple majority (50%+1) of Executive Officers and Area Representatives (not including vacancies), present for a meeting. For the purpose of making motions and voting on business items, it shall require a simple majority (50%+1) of those present voting in favor for approval.

Section 6. Area Meetings

Area meetings may be scheduled at the discretion of the respective Area Representative for the purpose of disseminating information regarding the 4CS to local senates.

Section 7. Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called at the discretion of the President or may be called at any time by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Executive Board, or upon written petition to the President by twenty percent (20%) of the 4CS senate membership.

Section 8. Meeting Procedures

The Executive Board reserves the right to establish meeting procedures for all 4CS meetings. In the absence of specific action by the Executive Board, Robert's Rules of Order (latest edition) shall be

501 the designated parliamentary authority for reference at all 4CS meetings.

502

503 **Section 9. Action Without Meeting**

504 The Executive Board may take action(s) that are within its powers and responsibilities as required or
505 needed without a formal meeting. Action(s) taken without meeting can only be initiated if all
506 current members of the Board shall consent to the Action without Meeting process in writing
507 annually. Approval of the action without meeting will be by majority vote. Written consent or
508 consents shall be filed with the minutes of the next regular Executive Board meeting.

509

510 **Section 10. Fiscal Year**

511 The Fiscal Year of the Corporation shall begin on July 1 and end on June 30 of each year.

512

513

514

515

516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558

ARTICLE VI
STANDING COMMITTEES AND ASSIGNMENTS

Section 1. Committees

The following standing committees shall perform functions as set forth by the Executive Board. Other standing committees may be formed as the need arises by the Executive Board.

- Awards and Recognition
- Bylaws
- Conference Development
- Fundraising
- Legislative Awareness
- Library/History/Data Collection
- Membership
- Nominations and Elections
- Policies and Procedures
- Public Relations
- Technology

Section 2. Committee Membership

Unless otherwise specified herein, the President shall, as soon as possible after his/her election, appoint the chairperson(s) and members of the standing committees. These appointments shall be subject to the ratification of the Executive Board. The Executive Board shall determine the number of members to be appointed to each committee except as otherwise provided herein.

- A. Membership on standing committees is not limited to the Executive Board members.
- B. There shall be a minimum of one Executive Board member on each of the standing committees.
- C. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all committees except the Nominations and Elections Committee.
- D. The President-Elect and Vice Presidents shall be ex-officio members of all committees.

Section 3. Standing Committee Quorum:

In order to conduct business, a quorum shall be defined as a simple majority (50% + 1) of the Standing Committee members present for a meeting. For the purpose of making motions and voting on business items in a meeting, it shall require a simple majority (50% + 1) of those present for approval.

Section 4. Committee Reports

Standing Committee Chairs will prepare a written report to be mailed to the President two (2) weeks prior to each Executive Board Meeting.

559 **Section 5. Special Assignments:**

560 The President may assign any active member of the 4CS special assignments that are from time to
561 time deemed necessary and subject to the approval of the Executive Board. The terms of all persons
562 appointed to special assignments shall last as long as is necessary to complete the assignment but not
563 longer than the appointing President's term of office.

564

565

566

567

568

569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602

ARTICLE VII
BYLAWS ESTABLISHMENT, AMENDMENT AND RATIFICATION

Section 1. 4CS Bylaws

The 4CS Executive Board shall adopt Bylaws to establish rules, procedures and other provisions for implementing the intent and purpose of this Corporation. The Executive Board is charged with the responsibility to update and change the Bylaws as necessary per Corporation Code. Changes in the number of maximum and minimum numbers of Executive Board members require membership ratification.

Section 2. Amendment of Bylaws

Bylaws consistent with and necessary to implement the Purposes and Mission may be adopted or amended by the 4CS Executive Board.

- A. Any local member senate or 4CS Executive Board member may propose Bylaw changes to the President. These proposed changes shall be placed on the agenda of the next Executive Board meeting for consideration, or at the request of the President be approved by a special vote of the Executive Board members prior to the next Executive Board meeting. The special vote must be documented in writing and the results are to be shared immediately with all Executive Board members. Special votes may occur providing the vote conforms to the provisions for doing so described in these Bylaws, in section Action Without Meeting.
- B. Adoption of proposed changes to the Bylaws shall require a simple majority (50% + 1) vote of the Executive Board members.
- C. If adopted, the changes shall be implemented into the Bylaws immediately. All changes to the Bylaws shall be made available to the 4CS membership.

Section 3. Ratification of Bylaws

4CS Bylaws changes requiring ratification by the general membership shall be by a simple majority (50%+1) vote in a special election or coinciding with the June Election as designated by the Executive Board. All changes shall be implemented immediately and shall be made available to the 4CS membership.

603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643

ARTICLE VIII
DEFINITIONS

Classified Staff

As defined by Section 88003, (1a) of the California Education Code.

Section 88003. (1a)

The governing board of any community college district shall employ persons for positions that are not academic positions. The governing board, except where Article 3 (commencing with Section 88060) or Section 88137 applies, shall classify all those employees and positions. The employees and positions shall be known as the classified service. (Section 88003 continues...)

Delegate

Each local member senate shall appoint a representative, hereinafter called “Delegate”, who shall represent that member senate during each Fiscal year. Delegates must be an active California Community College Classified Staff member. Delegates shall have full voting rights and shall have the responsibility of being a liaison between the local member senate, the Area Representative, and the 4CS.

Senates

Senates are defined as the elected body for classified staff whose primary purpose is participation in shared governance. (i.e. associations, councils, classified organizations, committees). Where there is only one classified body designated for both shared governance and collective bargaining, that body may become a member of the 4CS by submitting constitution and bylaws outlining and defining their role in shared governance as designated by the classified employees of that college.

Revised: 4/4/03
Revised: 9/13/03
Revised: 9/13/04
Revised: 3/7/08
Revised: 3/14/14
Revised: 9/9/14